
Scotland County Board of Commissioners reconvened meeting/public hearing 
June 17, 2013, A.B. Gibson Center, 322 South Main Street, Laurinburg, NC  
 

1 
 

MINUTES 
Scotland County Board of Commissioners 

June 17, 2013 Reconvened Meeting/Budget Public Hearing 
A.B. Gibson Education Center, 322 South Main Street, Laurinburg NC 

 
At 5 p.m., with Vice Chair Carol McCall presiding, the reconvened meeting was called to order.  
Commissioners in attendance:  Vice Chair Carol McCall and Commissioners John Alford, Bob 
Davis and Whit Gibson.  Commissioners not in attendance:  Chairman Guy McCook (excused) 
and Commissioners John Cooley and Clarence McPhatter.  Staff in attendance:  County Manager 
Kevin Patterson, County Attorney Ed Johnston, Finance Officer Charles Nichols and Clerk to the 
Board Ann W. Kurtzman.  Commissioner Gibson delivered the invocation.  The Pledge of 
Allegiance was recited.   
 
Public Hearing: FY 2014 budget plan 
 
County Manager Patterson presented details of the 2014 budget plan, which totals $37,438,486. 
Tax rate would remain flat at $1.03.  Anticipated property tax would be $20,638,416 with an 
estimated $5.4 million calculated in sales tax.  Mr. Patterson listed by department expenditures 
net of revenues. 
 
Mr. Patterson said Inspections added to its fee schedule fees for solar farm applications.  The 
structure of the solar farm fee schedule is identical to those of surrounding counties. 
 
Mr. Patterson said the only fee change in the landfill is the elimination of the $5 per ton for out 
of county waste.  Mr. Patterson said $300,000 was eliminated out of the landfill budget due to a 
decline in tonnage.  
 
Mr. Patterson said the budget plan includes closing Palmer Road convenience center and 
rearranging the schedule for the remaining convenience centers so at least one is open every day 
with the exception of Friday and Sunday.  He said three recycle sites would be open on Saturday. 
 
He said there is no change in convenience centers fees except for out-of-County users, who 
would pay double what the in-County fees are. 
 
The Water Districts I and II budgets remain flat, and there are no fee changes. 
 
Vice Chair McCall opened the Public Hearing and asked if anyone wished to speak about the 
proposed budget plan. 
 

Mr. Lawrence Kniffin, a Deercroft resident, said the only thing Deercroft residents get 
for their tax dollars is access to the Palmer Road convenience center.   Mr. Kniffin said it 
would be inappropriate to close Palmer Road.  He questioned how much consideration 
might have been given to residents in Deercroft and the immediate area. 
 
Mr. Thomas McKinnon, Odom Road, Laurinburg, supports keeping Palmer Road open 
because closing a convenience center might result in more people dumping trash along 



Scotland County Board of Commissioners reconvened meeting/public hearing 
June 17, 2013, A.B. Gibson Center, 322 South Main Street, Laurinburg, NC  
 

2 
 

the road.  Mr. McKinnon also complained about an incident at the Health Department 
where he and his wife were given the wrong information with regard to receiving a 
tetanus shot.  
 
Mr. Hal Culberson, Blue Woods Road, Laurinburg, said using school capital for roof 
repair is more critical than building a security wall.  Mr. Culberson said if the schools are 
permitted to construct a security wall instead of install a roof, the Commissioners at some 
point in the near future might still have to spend capital dollars on the emergency repair 
of a school roof. 
 
Mr. Carl Finley, a Deercroft resident, said he opposes closing Palmer Road convenience 
site.  Mr. Finley said he visits Palmer Road at least once a week.  He said closing Palmer 
Road would leave him little choice but to put his recyclables in the trash and let the 
landfill worry about it.   

 
Ms. Patricia Stone, Gilchrist Avenue, Laurinburg, said she is concerned that the 
intersection at WalMart and Scotsdale will not get a stop light, especially with the 
increased traffic from Walgreens.  Ms. Stone said she was not sure if this was the right 
place to address the issue, but she wanted the Commissioners to be aware of her concern. 
 
Ms. Brenda Priest, Campbell Road, said convenience centers reduce the amount of trash 
that ends up in the landfill.  Ms. Priest said she opposes closing Palmer Road 
convenience center because what goes there will wind up on the side of the road or in the 
landfill.  Ms. Priest said some families who use Palmer Road are in the low income 
bracket and shouldn’t have to pay more in gas to travel to the next closest recycle center.   
 
Ms. Priest said the extra money the School System had from the savings on the Wagram 
expansion should have gone for roof repair and not for security walls.  Ms. Priest, a 
former school employee, said walls can’t protect anyone from crazy people.  She added 
that children cannot learn if rain is coming in on their heads and there is mold in their 
classroom.  
 
Mr. Charles Parker, a Scotland County resident, said he appreciates the relationship the 
Commissioners and School Board are forming through informal meetings.  Mr. Parker 
said the door is open for both boards to work toward common goals.  He said one goal 
might be to address the school floor which, after 50 years, has outlived its use.  Mr. 
Parker said now that the door is open, this might be the time to put the school floor to a 
vote and let the people decide. 
 

No one else spoke, and the Public Hearing was closed.  
 
General budget discussion 

In other budget talks, Mr. Patterson said for the last four years the Board approved closing most 
County offices during Christmas week in response to employees not receiving COLA.  Mr. 



Scotland County Board of Commissioners reconvened meeting/public hearing 
June 17, 2013, A.B. Gibson Center, 322 South Main Street, Laurinburg, NC  
 

3 
 

Patterson asked that the Commissioners do the same again this year.  Mr. Patterson said most 
offices see few clients that week.  Tax, landfill and public safety would be an exception.   

Mr. Patterson said in 2012 the County used $260,000 of 911 funds for public safety expenses and 
$60,000 for the purchase of two defibrillators.  The funds were designated to the 911/EOC 
center.  Since the County is currently projecting a $436,000 increase in fund balance, Mr. 
Patterson recommend refunding half of the $260,000 911 funds, which would go to the reserve 
fund for the 911/EOC center.  They would be unrestricted funds.    

Additionally, Mr. Patterson said the Scotland County Economic Development Commission 
(SCEDC) partnership between the City and County used the $300,000 the County invested five 
years ago in the SCEDC.  Mr. Patterson recommended transferring $88,000 to the SCEDC so it 
would have funding for projects.  Mr. Patterson said the alternative would be to fund the projects 
as needed, which would most likely come from fund balance. 

The transfer of $130,000 to the 911/EOC and $88,000 to the SCEDC totals $218,000, which 
represents half the projected increase in the general fund.  The general fund is still projected to 
increase by $218,478, which means the fund balance would be at or above 10 percent of 
expenditures.   

Commissioner Gibson noted that the Commissioners each received a copy of a petition signed by 
46 people who oppose the proposed closure of Palmer Road convenience center. 
 
Consent Agenda: 

a) Approve FY 2014 Home and Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults 
Funding Plan in which the local match would be $38,787. 

b) Approve Home and Community Block Grant for Older Adults Agreement for the 
Provision of County-Based Aging Services. 

c) Budget amendments 
1) Scots for Youth:  Approve receipt of additional funds in the amount of $20,000, 

and authorize the Finance Officer to make necessary arrangements to receive 
and expend the money.  These are pass-through funds.  No County dollars.  

2) General Services:  Approve increase in the amount of $15,617 for foreclosed 
property. 

 
Motion was made by Commissioner Alford and duly seconded by Commissioner Davis to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  Motion unanimously approved. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Gibson and duly seconded by Commissioner Alford to 
recess to 3 p.m. Thursday, June 20, at 507 West Covington Street.  Vote:  Motion 
unanimously approved. 
 
 
 
Ann W. Kurtzman        Guy McCook 
Clerk to the Board        Chairman 


